
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 137 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, January 11, 2019 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Special Presentation 

a. Proclamation to Pilot Club (staff-CM) 
b. Departmental Presentation - Animal Services 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 
6. Approval of Agenda 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - December 7, 2018 (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of 2019 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

8. Request from Tax Commissioner to Write-off Bad Debts (Tax Comm) 
9. Request from Chief Magistrate to Repeal 2015 Local Legislation concerning the Magistrate Court (Magistrate) 
10. Approval of Accelerated Interfor Tax Abatement Schedule (PDA) 
11. Awarding of Solicitation 18-61221-001 Recreation Lighting Project (staff-Recreation) 
12. Approval of Service Delivery Strategy  
13. Authorization for Staff to schedule a Public Hearing for Proposed Changes to the Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances - Chapter 2 (Administration) (BW) 
14. Chairman Appointments (BW) 

a. BOC Vice Chairman 
b. Middle Georgia Regional Commission Council 
c. Hospital Authority Liaison 

15. Appointment of County Clerk (BW) 
16. Appointment of General Counsel (BW) 
17. Appointment of Auditor (BW) 
18. Appointment to the Sinclair Water Authority (BW) 
19. Appointments to the Planning & Zoning Commission (staff-CC) 
20. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 

 
Reports/Announcements 
21. County Manager Report 
22. County Attorney Report 
23. Commissioner Announcements 

 
Closing 
24. Adjournment 

  

1



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 2 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - December 7, 2018 (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of 2019 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

  

2



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

December 7, 2018 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, December 7, 2018 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, December 7, 2018 at 

approximately 9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Stephen Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Assistant County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
Chairman Hersey called the meeting to order at approximately 9:03 a.m. (Copy of agenda made 

a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 
2. Invocation 
Rev. Ford G'Segner gave the invocation. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Hersey led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

 

 

3



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

December 7, 2018 

Rezoning Public Hearing 
4. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for LA Development, LLC to rezone 117.54 acres at 475 

Pea Ridge Road from R-1R to AG-2 [Map 089, Parcel 024, District 2] (staff-P&D) 
Mr. Rick McAllister spoke in support of request.  No one signed in to speak against this item. 
Planning & Development staff recommendation was for approval. 
Motion to approve the request by Rick McAllister, agent for LA Development, LLC to 

rezone 117.54 acres at 475 Pea Ridge Road from R-1R to AG-2 [Map 089, Parcel 024, 

District 2]. 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Foster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Foster, Commissioner 

Addison 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 
Mr. Don Cottrell congratulated and thanked Chairman Hersey and Commissioner Foster and 

thanked all the commissioners for serving on the board in a thankless capacity. 

 
6. Approval of the Agenda 
Motion to approve the Agenda. 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Foster, Commissioner 

Addison 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - November 13, 2018 (staff-CC) 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Foster, Commissioner 

Addison 

 
8. Discussion and possible action regarding the Resolution to Amend ACCG Defined Benefit 

for Putnam County employees (staff-CM) 
County Manager Van Haute explained that this amendment will provide an option to convert 

excess leave from time of service credit to be able to place in a 457-deferred compensation plan. 
Motion to approve the Resolutions to amend ACCG Defined Benefit Plan for all Putnam 

County employees. 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Foster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Foster, Commissioner 

Addison 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

 
 

 
 

4



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

December 7, 2018 

9. Discussion and possible action on additional paving (staff-CM) 
County Manager Van Haute explained this option for additional paving is using the unit prices 

from Womack Paving, who has the current paving contract. 
Motion to approve additional paving as outlined for Recreation, Oconee Springs Park, and 

Animal Services not to exceed $340,000. 
Motion made by Commissioner Foster, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Foster, Commissioner 

Addison 

 
10. Awarding of RFP 18-42001-002 Professional Engineering Design Services for Scott Road 

Extension (staff-CM) 
Motion to award RFP 18-42001-002 Professional Engineering Design Services for Scott 

Road to Southeastern Engineering in the amount of $116,750. 
Motion made by Commissioner Foster, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Foster, Commissioner 

Addison 

 
 
Meeting recessed at approximately 9:51 a.m. 
Meeting reconvened at approximately 10:00 a.m. 

 

 
11. Special Presentations 
Proclamations & plaques were presented to Chairman Hersey and Commissioner Foster. (Copy 

of proclamations made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 
Reports/Announcements 
12. County Manager Report 
County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

• Public Works has 20 tons of salt ready for any weather event 

• Thanked Chairman Hersey and Commissioner Foster 

• “Go Army – beat Navy” 
 

13. County Attorney Report 
County Attorney Fleming did not have a report but thanked Chairman Hersey and Commissioner 

Foster for their service. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

December 7, 2018 

14. Commissioner Announcements 
Commissioner Irvin: confirmed the date of the annual Christmas lunch is December 20th  

 
Commissioner Brown: absent 

 

Commissioner Foster:  expressed his appreciation to staff members and shared some memories 

  
Commissioner Addison: thanked Chairman Hersey and Commissioner Foster for their service 

and the relationships that have developed, reminded all to remember the attack on Pearl Harbor; 

and wished everyone a Merry Christmas 

 

Chairman Hersey – thanked the staff and wished everyone Happy Holidays 
 

Closing 
15. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Hersey, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Foster, Commissioner 

Addison 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:25 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

6



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

Approval of 2019 Alcohol Licenses 

 
 

The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 

the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal, 
Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Veronica Montiel Elsitio Mexican 

Grill 

106 Harmony 

Crossing 

Retail Consumption on 

Premises: Beer, Wine, & Liquor 

Robert Lupton Sav-A-Lot 958 Greensboro 

Road 

Retail Package Sale: 

Beer & Wine 

Hiren Patel KC’s Food Mart 406 Pea Ridge 

Road 

Retail Package Sale: 

Beer & Wine 

Sanjay Suhag Lakeside Bait & 

Tackle 

1065 

Milledgeville 

Highway 

Retail Package Sale: 

Beer & Wine 

Manuel Sanchez LaLore Cage 113 Harmony 

Crossing, Suite 

8 

Retail Consumption on 

Premises: Beer, Wine, & Liquor 

Miaoying Wu Inaho Japanese 

Steak & Sushi 

103 Harmony 

Crossing, Suite 

6 

Retail Consumption on 

Premises: Beer, Wine, & Liquor 

Timothy Hong Great Waters 

Clubhouse 

112 Great 

Waters Drive 

Retail Consumption on 

Premises: Beer, Wine, & Liquor 

Mark Little Twin Bridges 

Landing 

611 Twin 

Bridges Road 

Retail Package Sale: 

Beer & Wine 

Mark Little Harmony Crossing 

Foods 

101 Lake 

Oconee Parkway 

Retail Package Sale: 

Beer & Wine 

Javier Medina El Agave 960 Greensboro 

Road 

Retail Consumption on 

Premises: Beer, Wine, & Liquor 

Anila Ali Long Shoals 

Country Store 

1093 Sparta 

Highway 

Retail Package Sale: 

Beer & Wine 

Shanil Surani Terry’s One Stop 271 Scuffleboro 

Road 

Retail Package Sale: 

Beer & Wine 
 

7



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 8 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
8. Request from Tax Commissioner to Write-off Bad Debts (Tax Comm) 

  

8



9



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 10 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
9. Request from Chief Magistrate to Repeal 2015 Local Legislation concerning the Magistrate 

Court (Magistrate) 

  

10



11



12



13



14



15



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 16 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
10. Approval of Accelerated Interfor Tax Abatement Schedule (PDA) 

  

16



17



rev 12/18/18

REAL PROPERTY PERSONAL PROPERTY: LIFE GROUP 3 ‐ 13 YEARS OR MORE
TERM: 10 YEAR TERM: 10 YEARS

NORMAL NORMAL SPECIAL COUNTY SPECIAL SCHOOL NORMAL NORMAL SPECIAL COUNTY SPECIAL SCHOOL
YEAR INVESTMENT EQUITY TAXABLE VALUE TAX AMOUNT TAXABLE VALUE TAX AMOUNT TAX AMOUNT YEAR INVESTMENT EQUITY DEP. TAXABLE VALUE TAX AMOUNT TAXABLE VALUE TAX AMOUNT TAX AMOUNT
ONE ‐$                    50.00% ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                      ‐$                        ‐$                      ONE $1,605,260 50.00% 95% 1,524,997$         15,237.77$        762,499$            2,656.85$           9,924.07$                  
TWO 6,225,900$       55.56% 6,225,900$           62,209$                 3,459,110$         12,052.92$           40,515.67$          TWO $17,617,455 55.56% 91% 16,031,884$      160,190.59$      8,907,315$         31,036.65$         104,329.09$             
THREE 23,907,583$     61.12% 23,907,583$        238,885$              14,612,315$        50,915.15$           155,580.99$        THREE $63,092,417 61.12% 87% 54,890,403$      548,464.90$      33,549,014$      116,898.19$      357,204.79$             
FOUR 23,907,583$     66.68% 23,907,583$        238,885$              15,941,576$        55,546.83$           155,580.99$        FOUR $63,092,417 66.68% 82% 51,735,782$      516,943.93$      34,497,419$      120,202.81$      336,675.77$             
FIVE 23,907,583$     72.24% 23,907,583$        238,885$              17,270,838$        60,178.51$           155,580.99$        FIVE $63,092,417 72.24% 79% 49,843,009$      498,031.35$      36,006,590$      125,461.36$      324,358.37$             
SIX 23,907,583$     77.80% 23,907,583$        238,885$              18,600,100$        64,810.19$           155,580.99$        SIX $63,092,417 77.80% 75% 47,319,313$      472,814.57$      36,814,425$      128,276.18$      307,935.16$             
SEVEN 23,907,583$     83.36% 23,907,583$        238,885$              19,929,361$        69,441.87$           155,580.99$        SEVEN $63,092,417 83.36% 70% 44,164,692$      441,293.60$      36,815,687$      128,280.58$      287,406.15$             
EIGHT 23,907,583$     88.92% 23,907,583$        238,885$              21,258,623$        74,073.55$           155,580.99$        EIGHT $63,092,417 88.92% 63% 39,748,223$      397,164.24$      35,344,120$      123,153.05$      258,665.53$             
NINE 23,907,583$     94.48% 23,907,583$        238,885$              22,587,884$        78,705.22$           155,580.99$        NINE $63,092,417 94.48% 57% 35,962,678$      359,339.08$      33,977,538$      118,391.33$      234,030.72$             
TEN 23,907,583$     100.00% 23,907,583$        238,885$              23,907,583$        83,303.58$           155,580.99$        TEN $63,092,417 100.00% 52% 32,808,057$      327,818.10$      32,808,057$      114,316.39$      213,501.71$             
TOTAL 197,486,564$   1,973,285.75$    549,027.81$        1,285,163.56$   TOTAL 3,737,298.14$ 1,008,673.39$  2,434,031.36$        

8.333 County (unincorporated) School  & County NORMAL TAX 1,973,285.75$    School  & County NORMAL TAX 3,737,298.14$         
0.378 SSD 8.711 School  & County SPECIAL TAX 1,834,191.38$    School  & County SPECIAL TAX 3,442,704.76$         

16.269 School TAX SAVINGS 139,094.37$        TAX SAVINGS 294,593.38$             
24.980 TOTAL

School  & County NORMAL TAX 5,710,583.89$         
School  & County SPECIAL TAX 5,276,896.13$         

TAX SAVINGS 433,687.75$             
BOND TRANSACTION COSTS (50,000.00)$              

TOTAL TAX SAVINGS 383,687.75$    

$63,092,417

Interfor
STANDARD Tax Abatement Schedule

$23,907,583

Millage Rate Real Property Personal Property

Combined Real & Personal Property

$87,000,000 Manufacturing Plant Retooling Project

18



rev 12/18/18

PERSONAL PROPERTY: LIFE GROUP 3 ‐ 13 YEARS OR MORE
TERM: 4 YEARS

NORMAL NORMAL SPECIAL COUNTY SPECIAL
YEAR INVESTMENT EQUITY DEP. TAXABLE VALUE TAX AMOUNT TAXABLE VALUE TAX AMOUNT
ONE $1,605,260 0.00% 95% 1,524,997$          5,313.70$           ‐$                        ‐$                           
TWO $17,617,455 0.00% 91% 16,031,884$       55,861.50$         ‐$                        ‐$                           
THREE $63,092,417 0.00% 87% 54,890,403$       191,260.12$       ‐$                        ‐$                           
FOUR $63,092,417 0.00% 82% 51,735,782$       180,268.16$       ‐$                        ‐$                           
TOTAL 432,703.47$      ‐$                          

8.333 County (unincorporated) County NORMAL TAX 432,703.47$             
0.378 SSD County SPECIAL TAX ‐$                           
8.711 TOTAL TAX SAVINGS 432,703.47$             

BOND TRANSACTION COSTS (50,000.00)$              
TOTAL TAX SAVINGS 382,703.47$     

$63,092,417

Millage Rate Personal Property

Interfor
ACCELERATED Tax Abatement Schedule

$87,000,000 Manufacturing Plant Retooling Project

19



rev 12/18/18

PERSONAL PROPERTY: LIFE GROUP 3 ‐ 13 YEARS OR MORE
TERM: 10 YEARS

NORMAL NORMAL SPECIAL COUNTY SPECIAL
YEAR INVESTMENT EQUITY DEP. TAXABLE VALUE TAX AMOUNT TAXABLE VALUE TAX AMOUNT
ONE $1,605,260 42.00% 95% 1,524,997$          5,313.70$           640,499$              2,231.75$                 
TWO $17,617,455 48.00% 91% 16,031,884$       55,861.50$         7,695,304$           26,813.52$               
THREE $63,092,417 50.00% 87% 54,890,403$       191,260.12$       27,445,201$         95,630.06$               
FOUR $63,092,417 56.00% 82% 51,735,782$       180,268.16$       28,972,038$         100,950.17$             
FIVE $63,092,417 61.00% 79% 49,843,009$       173,672.98$       30,404,236$         105,940.52$             
SIX $63,092,417 66.00% 75% 47,319,313$       164,879.41$       31,230,746$         108,820.41$             
SEVEN $63,092,417 71.00% 70% 44,164,692$       153,887.45$       31,356,931$         109,260.09$             
EIGHT $63,092,417 76.00% 63% 39,748,223$       138,498.71$       30,208,649$         105,259.02$             
NINE $63,092,417 80.11% 57% 35,962,678$       125,308.35$       28,809,701$         100,384.52$             
TEN $63,092,417 100.00% 52% 32,808,057$       114,316.39$       32,808,057$         114,316.39$             
TOTAL 1,303,266.78$  869,606.46$            

8.333 County (unincorporated) County NORMAL TAX 1,303,266.78$         
0.378 SSD County SPECIAL TAX 869,606.46$             
8.711 TOTAL TAX SAVINGS 433,660.32$             

BOND TRANSACTION COSTS (50,000.00)$              
TOTAL TAX SAVINGS 383,660.32$     

$63,092,417

Millage Rate Personal Property

Interfor
COMBINED Tax Abatement Schedule

$87,000,000 Manufacturing Plant Retooling Project

20



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 21 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
11. Awarding of Solicitation 18-61221-001 Recreation Lighting Project (staff-Recreation) 

  

21



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-5826 ◊ Fax: 706-923-2345 ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 1/7/19 
 
Putnam County Recreation – Phase 2 Football/Soccer Field Lighting Project 
     Field Location- First field on your left when you enter our park.  The field is used  
     primarily for football and soccer. 
 
Requesting: $128,800 from SPLOST 8 
 
Recommended from sealed bid: 
Manufacturer: Musco Sports Lighting 
Contractor: West Georgia Lighting 
 
Musco Sports Lighting: 
  25-year warranty on all maintenance costs. 
  The new lights will be LED. 
  Energy Savings. 
  Musco light pole bases are in place from Phase 1.   
  The new lights will be integrated into our current lighting system for remote 
    access.   
  Light fixtures for parking lot and batting cages will be added to existing poles. 
  Maintenance support and monitoring. 
  Musco/West Georgia installed the lights for Phase 1 on our baseball fields 1-3 
 
Reasons for new lights: 
  Light poles need to be replaced. 
  Light fixtures are very old and will need replacing soon. 
  Current lights do a poor job of lighting the field properly. 
  Injuries can occur with poor lighting. 
  Portable lights are being rented to help get more light to the field. 
 
 
 
 
Scott Haley 
Putnam County Recreation 
Director 
   
 
   
   
   

22



*One other bid was received but it was after the 
bid opening time.  It was not opened.

23



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 24 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
12. Approval of Service Delivery Strategy  

  

24



 
RESOLUTION 

PUTNAM COUNTY  

 

 

WHEREAS, during its 1997 Legislative Session, the Georgia State Legislature adopted the Service 

Delivery Strategy Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, this act requires every county in the State of Georgia to adopt a Service Delivery 

Strategy which identifies the methods, funding sources, service provider, and geographic service 

area of each public service activity provided within the county; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Service Delivery Strategy must be officially adopted and verified by the Georgia 

Department of Community Affairs by February 28, 2019;   

 

WHEREAS, city and county officials have worked diligently to prepare the county’s Service 

Delivery Strategy; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Chairman of the Putnam County Board of Commissioners is required to sign the 

requisite documents acknowledging approval of the Service Delivery Strategy. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Putnam County that 

the attached Putnam County Service Delivery Strategy is hereby adopted as the official Service 

Delivery Strategy, to be updated from time-to-time as required in Title 36 of the Official Code of 

Georgia Annotated 36-70-1 et al; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman of the Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

is hereby authorized to place the Service Delivery Strategy on the appropriate forms prescribed by 

the Georgia Department of Community Affairs, to execute those forms in the proper places, and to 

submit the Service Delivery Strategy to the Department of Community Affairs for verification in 

compliance with O.C.G.A. 36-70-26.    

 

Adopted this 11th day of January 2019 at the county’s commission meeting. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Chairman Billy Webster  

Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

                                                                                                                      AFFIX   

                                                                                                                       SEAL 

                                                     

__________________________________________ 

Witness   

25



COUNTY: PUTNAM
I. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

1. FORM 1 is required for ALL SDS submittals.  Only one set of these forms should be submitted per county. The completed
forms shall clearly present the collective agreement reached by all cities and counties that were party to the service
delivery strategy.

2. List each local government and/or authority that provides services included in the service delivery strategy in Section II
below.

3. List all services provided or primarily funded by each general purpose local government and/or authority within the county
that are continuing without change in Section III, below. (It is acceptable to break a service into separate components if this will facilitate
description of the service delivery strategy.)

OPTION A 
Revising or Adding to the SDS 

OPTION B 
Extending the Existing SDS 

4. List all services provided or primarily funded by each
general purpose local government and authority within
the county which are revised or added to the SDS in
Section IV, below. (It is acceptable to break a service into separate
components if this will facilitate description of the service delivery
strategy.)

5. For each service or service component listed in Section
IV, complete a separate, updated Summary of Service
Delivery Arrangements form (FORM 2).

6. Complete one copy of the Certifications form (FORM 4)
and have it signed by the authorized representatives of
participating local governments. [Please note that DCA cannot
validate the strategy unless it is signed by the local governments
required by law (see Instructions, FORM 4).]

4. In Section IV type, “NONE.”

5. Complete one copy of the Certifications for Extension of
Existing SDS form (FORM 5) and have it signed by the
authorized representatives of the participating local
governments. [Please note that DCA cannot validate the strategy
unless it is signed by the local governments required by law (see
Instructions, FORM 5).]

6. Proceed to step 7, below.

7. If any of the conditions described in the existing Summary of Land Use Agreements form (FORM 3) have changed or if it
has been ten (10) or more years since the most recent FORM 3 was filed, update and include FORM 3 with the submittal.

8. Provide the completed forms and any attachments to your regional commission.  The regional commission will upload
digital copies of the SDS documents to the Department’s password-protected web-server.

NOTE:   ANY FUTURE CHANGES TO THE SERVICE DELIVERY ARRANGEMENTS DESCRIBED ON THESE FORMS WILL REQUIRE AN UPDATE OF THE SERVICE DELIVERY 

STRATEGY AND SUBMITTAL OF REVISED FORMS AND ATTACHMENTS TO THE GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS UNDER THE “OPTION A” 

PROCESS DESCRIBED, ABOVE. 

For answers to most frequently asked questions on
Georgia’s Service Delivery Act, links and helpful 

publications, visit DCA’s website at 
http://www.dca.ga.gov/development/PlanningQ

ualityGrowth/programs/servicedelivery.asp,  
or call the Office of Planning and Quality Growth at 

(404) 679-5279.

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 1

Page 1 of 2 

26



II. LOCAL GOVERNMENTS INCLUDED IN THE SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY: 
In this section, list all local governments (including cities located partially within the county) and authorities that provide services included in the service 
delivery strategy.  
Putnam County, City of Eatonton, Putnam Development Authority, Eatonton-Putnam Water and Sewer 
Authority, Hospital Authority of Putnam County, Uncle Remus Regional Library System 

III. SERVICES INCLUDED IN THE EXISTING SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY THAT ARE BEING EXTENDED WITHOUT 

CHANGE: 
In this section, list each service or service component already included in the existing SDS which will continue as previously agreed with no need for 
modification. 
Cemetery, E-911, Indigent Defense, Public Transportation, Stormwater Management, Street Lighting 
 

IV. SERVICES THAT ARE BEING REVISED OR ADDED IN THIS SUBMITTAL: 
In this section, list each new service or new service component which is being added and each service or service component which is being revised in this 
submittal.  For each item listed here, a separate Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements form (FORM 2) must be completed.  

Ambulance, Animal Control, Building Inspection, City Elections, Code Enforcement, Court (Municipal), 
Downtown Development, Economic Development, Elections and Voter Registration, Emergency 
Management, Extension Services and 4-H, Fire Protection and Rescue Services-combined to form Fire 
and Rescue, Golf Course, Hospital, Inert Landfill-deletion of service, Jail Operations- deletion of service, 
Law Enforcement (Municipal), Library, Natural Gas, Oconee Springs Park, Putnam-Jasper Service 
Center, Recreation, Roads and Bridges, Senior Center, Sewage Collection/Treatment, Solid Waste 
Collection/Recycling, Solid Waste Disposal, Water Services, Zoning 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

27



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Ambulance 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

28



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General Fund and User Fees 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This strategy changes the funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County. The county will continue to 
provide the service countywide. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

29



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Animal Control 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

30



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County Special Service District funding and fees 

City of Eatonton General Fund 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This strategy changes the funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County. The county will continue to 
provide the service countywide. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
IGA-Animal Control Services Putnam County and City of Eatonton 07/27/2018-07/27/2028 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

Putnam County-Special Service District Revenues as itemized in Putnam County Resolution creating the Special Service 
District effective October 1, 2018.  
The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

31



 
 
 
 

Instructions: 

Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Building Inspection 

1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service:

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 

b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.): 

c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:   

d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):     

e.)  Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.): 

2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service
identified?

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     

No 

If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 

If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

32



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General fund and fees 

City of Eatonton General Fund 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This strategy changes the funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County. The County will continue to 
provide the service countywide. The service is jointly funded through an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). The County 
is permitted to use the General Fund per the Planning and Development service IGA and subject to the passage of the 
2018 SPLOST Referendum. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
IGA-Planning & Development Putnam County and City of Eatonton 07/27/2018-07/27/2028 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The 2018 SPLOST Intergovernmental Agreement also references the provision of this service. 
 
The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

33



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:City Elections 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):      
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service: City of Eatonton 
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

34



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

City of Eatonton General Fund 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The City of Eatonton provides city election services within the city limits. The method of funding used to provide the 
service is the general fund. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   GARY SANDERS, CITY ADMINISTRATOR, (706) 485-3311 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

35



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Code Enforcement 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):      
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.): Putnam County and City of Eatonton 
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

36



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County Special Service District Revenues 

City of Eatonton General Fund 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This strategy changes the funding methods used to provide the service. The county will continue to provide the service in 
the unincorporated county and the City will provide the service within the city limits. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

Putnam County-Special Service District Revenues as itemized in Putnam County Resolution creating the Special Service 
District effective October 1, 2018.  
The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

37



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Court (Municipal) 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):      
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service: City of Eatonton 
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

38



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

City of Eatonton General Fund 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The City of Eatonton provides a higher level of service by providing Municipal Court. The method of funding used to 
provide the service is the general fund. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   GARY SANDERS, CITY ADMINISTRATOR, (706) 485-3311 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

39



 
 
 
 

Instructions: 

Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Downtown Development 

1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service:

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):    

b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.): 

c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service: Eatonton Downtown Development Authority 

d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):     

e.)  Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.): 

2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service
identified?

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     

No 

If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 

If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

40



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

City of Eatonton General Fund 

Eatonton Downtown Development  General Fund, Special Projects, and grants 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

Previously Downtown Development was included within the Economic Development service. A higher level of service is 
provided by the City within the downtown area. The City will execute the same funding method as the Economic 
Development service to provide Downtwon Development. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   GARY SANDERS, CITY ADMINISTRATOR, (706) 485-3311 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

41



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Economic Development 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam Development 
Authority 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

42



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam Development Authority General Fund, Special Projects, and grants 

Putnam County General Fund 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This strategy changes the funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County. The Putnam Development 
Authority will continue to provide the service countywide. There was a change in the manner in which the City of Eatonton 
provides Downtown Development at a higher level of service. An additional service has been identified. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

43



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Elections and Voter Registration 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

44



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General Fund 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

Putnam County provides elections services for all county, state, and national elections. Voter registration countywide will 
be maintained by the county. The method of funding used to provide the service is the general fund. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

45



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Emergency Management 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

46



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General Fund and grants (GEMA, FEMA) 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This strategy changes the funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County. The County will continue to 
provide the service countywide.  

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

47



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Extension Services and 4-H 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

48



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General Fund 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This service is new.  The funding method used to provide the service in Putnam County is the general fund. The County 
will provide the service countywide.  

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
Extension Service Contract Putnam County and UGA Annual 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

49



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Fire and Rescue 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):      
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.): Putnam 
County and City of Eatonton 
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

50



3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g.,
enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.).

Local Government or Authority Funding Method 
Putnam County General Fund, SPLOST, and grants 

City of Eatonton General Fund, SPLOST, and grants 

4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county?

Fire Protection and Rescue Services are no longer separate services and have been combined to Fire and Rescue. The 
funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County and the City of Eatonton will be through the General Fund. 
The County will provide rescue, extrication, and first responder services countywide. The City does not provide those 
services.The County will provide automatic aid to the city. In exchange for this public benefit the City agrees that the 
County can fund the County Fire Department from countywide revenues in the General Fund.  

5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for
this service:

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
IGA-Fire and Rescue Services Putnam County and City of Eatonton 07/27/2018-07/27/2028 

6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local
acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect?

The 2018 SPLOST Intergovernmental Agreement also references the provision of this service. 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC
Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018

8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government
projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No

If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below:
PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826

SDS FORM 2, continued

Page 2 of 2 

51



Sources: Esri, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen, Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap and the GIS user community

Putnam County
Fire Service Area

0 2 41
Miles

0
10
00
0

20
00
0

50
00

Feet

City of Eatonton
Fire Service Area

Putnam County Fire
Service Area

Eatonton City Limits

Putnam County
Boundary

52



Sources: Esri, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen, Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap and the GIS user community

Putnam County
Rescue

Service Area

0 2 41
Miles

0
10
00
0

20
00
0

50
00

Feet

Putnam County
Rescue Service Area

Eatonton City Limits

Putnam County
Boundary

53



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Golf Course 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

54



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County User Fees and General Fund 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County will be through user fees and the general fund. The 
County will provide the service countywide. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

55



 
 
 
 

Instructions: 

Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Hospital 

1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service:

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Hospital Authority of 
Putnam County 

b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.): 

c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:   

d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):     

e.)  Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.): 

2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service
identified?

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     

No 

If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 

If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

56



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Hospital Authority of Putnam County User Fees, General Fund, and County subsidy 

Putnam County General Fund 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County will be through user fees, the general fund, and 
county subsidy as needed. The Hospital Authority of Putnam County will provide the service countywide. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

57



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Law Enforcement (Municipal) 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):      
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service: City of Eatonton 
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

58



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

City of Eatonton General Fund and grants 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The method of funding for the service has not been altered. The City of Eatonton provides a higher level of service with 
the operation of the Eatonton Police Department within the city limits. An agreement is still in place for the County to 
house inmates for the City. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
IGA- Inmate Housing Putnam County, City of Eatonton 08/05/1997-Present 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   GARY SANDERS, CITY ADMINISTRATOR, (706) 485-3311 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

59



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Library 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Uncle Remus Regional 
Library System 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

60



3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g.,
enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.).

Local Government or Authority Funding Method 
Uncle Remus Regional Library Sys. Fees, grants, and donations 

City of Eatonton General Fund 
Putnam County Special Service District Revenues 

4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county?

The method of funding for the service has been altered to include special service district revenues from the County. The 
Uncle Remus Regional Library system continues to provide the service countywide. 

5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for
this service:

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
IGA-Library Services Putnam County and City of Eatonton 07/27/2018-7/27/2028 

6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local
acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect?

Putnam County-Special Service District Revenues as itemized in Putnam County Resolution creating the Special Service 
District effective October 1, 2018.  
The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC
Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018

8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government
projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No

If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below:
PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826

SDS FORM 2, continued

Page 2 of 2 

61



 
 
 
 

Instructions: 

Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Natural Gas 

1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service:

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):City of Eatonton 

b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.): 

c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:   

d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):     

e.)  Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.): 

2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service
identified?

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     

No 

If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 

If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

62



3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g.,
enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.).

Local Government or Authority Funding Method 
City of Eatonton Enterprise Fund, SPLOST, and grants 

4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county?

Natural gas was not previously identified as a service provided throughout the county. The method of funding for the 
service includes the enterprise fund, SPLOST, and grants. The City of Eatonton provides the service countywide. 
Expansion efforts and repairs can be funded through grant opportunities. 

5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for
this service:

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 

6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local
acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect?

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC
Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018

8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government
projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No

If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below:
GARY SANDERS, CITY ADMINISTRATOR, (706) 485-3311

SDS FORM 2, continued

Page 2 of 2 

63



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Oconee Springs Park 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

64



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County Enterprise Fund 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

Oconee Springs Park was not previously identified as a service provided throughout the county. The method of funding for 
the service includes the enterprise fund. The County provides the service countywide. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

65



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Putnam-Jasper Service Center 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

66



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General Fund 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The Putnam-Jasper Service Center is a new service provided countywide by the county. The general fund is used to 
financially support the operation. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

67



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Recreation 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

68



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General Fund and User Fees 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This strategy changes the funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County. The county will continue to 
provide the service countywide. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

69



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Roads and Bridges 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):      
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.): Putnam County and City of Eatonton 
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

70



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General Fund, LMIG, SPLOST, TSPLOST, and grants 

City of Eatonton General Fund, LMIG, SPLOST, TSPLOST, and grants 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County and the City of Eatonton will be through the general 
fund, LMIG, SPLOST, and TSPLOST. The County will provide the service throughout the unincorporated county. The City 
will provide the service within the city limits. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

71



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Senior Center 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):City of Eatonton 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

72



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

City of Eatonton General Fund and grants 

Putnam County Special Service District Revenues 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The service is now being provided by the City of Eatonton. The method of funding used to provide the service will be 
shared by the City of Eatonton and Putnam County. The service will be provided countywide. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
IGA-Senior Center Services Putnam County and City of Eatonton 07/27/2018-07/27/2028 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

Putnam County Resolution creating the Special Service District and specifying the available revenues to be used in 
funding the SSD services effective October 1, 2018. 
The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   GARY SANDERS, CITY ADMINISTRATOR, (706) 485-3311 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

73



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Sewage Collection/Treatment 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Eatonton-Putnam Water 
and Sewer Authority 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

74



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Eatonton-Putnam Water & Sewer Aut Use Fees 

Putnam County Grants and Bonds 
City of Eatonton Grants and Bonds 
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The Eatonton-Putnam Water and Sewer Authority continues to provide the sewage collection/treatment countywide. 
Putnam County and City of Eatonton provide additional funding as needed for expansion of the service. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

75



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Solid Waste Collection/Recycling 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):      
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.): Putnam County and City of Eatonton 
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

76



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County Special Service District Revenue 

City of Eatonton General Fund 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

Putnam County will continue to provide the service within the unincorporated county and the City of Eatonton will continue 
to provide the service within the city limits. The method of funding used to provide the service will be the General fund for 
the City and Special Service District Revenue for the County. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

Putnam County-Special Service District Revenues as itemized in Putnam County Resolution creating the Special Service 
District effective October 1, 2018.  
The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

77



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Solid Waste Disposal 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Putnam County 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

78



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County General Fund 

            
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The service will continue to be provided countywide by Putnam County. The method of funding used to provide the service 
will be the General Fund. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
IGA-Solid Waste Disposal Putnam County and City of Eatonton 07/27/2018-07/27/2028 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

79



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Water Services 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):Eatonton-Putnam Water 
and Sewer Authority 
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.):       
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

80



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Eatonton-Putnam Water & Sewer Aut User Fees 

Putnam County Grants and Bonds 
City of Eatonton Grants and Bonds 
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

The Eatonton-Putnam Water and Sewer Authority continues to provide water services countywide. Putnam County and 
City of Eatonton provide additional funding as needed for expansion of the service. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

81



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Instructions: 
 
Make copies of this form and complete one for each service listed on FORM 1, Section IV. Use EXACTLY the same service names listed on FORM 1. 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary. If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of the page) changes, this 
should be reported to the Department of Community Affairs. 

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM Service:Zoning 

 
 
1. Check one box that best describes the agreed upon delivery arrangement for this service: 
 

a.)   Service will be provided countywide (i.e., including all cities and unincorporated areas) by a single service provider. 
(If this box is checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):      
 

 
b.)   Service will be provided only in the unincorporated portion of the county by a single service provider. (If this box is 
checked, identify the government, authority or organization providing the service.):       
 
 
c.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the service will not be 
provided in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service:       
 
 
d.)   One or more cities will provide this service only within their incorporated boundaries, and the county will provide the 
service in unincorporated areas. (If this box is checked, identify the government(s), authority or organization providing the 
service.): City of Eatonton and Putnam County 
 
 
e.)   Other (If this box is checked, attach a legible map delineating the service area of each service provider, and 
identify the government, authority, or other organization that will provide service within each service area.):       
 

 
2. In developing this strategy, were overlapping service areas, unnecessary competition and/or duplication of this service 

identified? 
 

Yes  (if “Yes,” you must attach additional documentation as described, below)     
 

No 
 
If these conditions will continue under this strategy, attach an explanation for continuing the arrangement (i.e., 
overlapping but higher levels of service (See O.C.G.A. 36-70-24(1)), overriding benefits of the duplication, or reasons that 
overlapping service areas or competition cannot be eliminated). 
 
If these conditions will be eliminated under the strategy, attach an implementation schedule listing each step or action that 
will be taken to eliminate them, the responsible party and the agreed upon deadline for completing it. 

Page 1 of 2 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 2:  Summary of Service Delivery Arrangements 

82



 
 
 
 
3. List each government or authority that will help to pay for this service and indicate how the service will be funded (e.g., 

enterprise funds, user fees, general funds, special service district revenues, hotel/motel taxes, franchise taxes, impact 
fees, bonded indebtedness, etc.). 

                                   
Local Government or Authority Funding Method 

Putnam County Special Service District funding and fees 

City of Eatonton General Fund 
            
            
            
            

 
4. How will the strategy change the previous arrangements for providing and/or funding this service within the county? 

 

This strategy changes the funding methods used to provide the service in Putnam County. The county will continue to 
provide the service countywide. An agreement has been updated to address the City's use of the service. 

 
5. List any formal service delivery agreements or intergovernmental contracts that will be used to implement the strategy for 

this service: 
                       

Agreement Name Contracting Parties Effective and Ending Dates 
IGA-Planning & Development Putnam County and City of Eatonton 07/27/2018-07/27/2028 
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  

 
6. What other mechanisms (if any) will be used to implement the strategy for this service (e.g., ordinances, resolutions, local 

acts of the General Assembly, rate or fee changes, etc.), and when will they take effect? 
 

Putnam County Resolution creating the Special Service District and specifying the available revenues to be used in 
funding the SSD services effective October 1, 2018. 
The county and city have elected to use resolutions adopted by each governing body to initiate the Service Delivery 
Strategy. Provision of this service will be carried out as outlined and authorized by the governing bodies upon passage of 
the adoption resolution. Additionally, any agreements outlined above will govern the delivery of this service. 

 
7. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Senior Government Services Specialist, MGRC 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
8. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SDS FORM 2, continued 

Page 2 of 2 

83



                                                              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Instructions: 
 
Answer each question below, attaching additional pages as necessary.  Please note that any changes to the answers provided will require an update of the 
service delivery strategy.  If the contact person for this service (listed at the bottom of this page) changes, this should be reported to the Department of 
Community Affairs.  

 

COUNTY:PUTNAM 

1. What incompatibilities or conflicts between the land use plans of local governments were identified in the process of 
developing the service delivery strategy?  
Putnam County and the City of Eatonton have adopted a Joint Comprehensive Plan that contains a compatible and 
nonconflicting Land Use element. The County and City utilize the existing Land Use element contained within the Joint 
Comprehensive Plan as a basis for land use classification within their jurisidications. 
 
 
 
 

2. Check the boxes indicating how these incompatibilities or conflicts were addressed:  

  Amendments to existing comprehensive plans 

  Adoption of a joint comprehensive plan  

  Other measures (amend zoning ordinances, add environmental regulations, etc.)  
       
 If “other measures” was checked, describe these measures:   
Describe "Other" Measures Here 
 

3.  What policies, procedures and/or processes have been established by local governments (and water and sewer 
authorities) to ensure that new extraterritorial water and sewer service will be consistent with all applicable land use plans 
and ordinances?  Putnam County and the City of Eatonton have adopted a process for addressing water and sewer service 
with the Eatonton-Putnam Water and Sewer Authority in conjunction with current and future land use plans. 

4. Person completing form: Kimberly Lowe, Government Services Specialist 
 

Phone number: (478) 751-6160          Date completed: December 13, 2018 
 
5. Is this the person who should be contacted by state agencies when evaluating whether proposed local   government 

projects are consistent with the service delivery strategy? Yes No 
 
If not, provide designated contact person(s) and phone number(s) below: 

   PAUL VAN HAUTE, COUNTY MANAGER, (706) 485-5826 

 

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 3:  Summary of Land Use Agreements 

Page 1 of 1 

If the necessary plan amendments, 
regulations, ordinances, etc. have not yet 

been formally adopted, indicate when 
each of the affected local governments 

will adopt them. 

NOTE: 

84



Instructions: 

This form must, at a minimum, be signed by an authorized representative of the following governments: 1) the county; 2) the city serving as the county 
seat; 3) all cities having a 2010 population of over 9,000 residing within the county; and 4) no less than 50% of all other cities with a 2010 population of 
between 500 and 9,000 residing within the county.  Cities with a 2010 population below 500 and local authorities providing services under the strategy are 
not required to sign this form, but are encouraged to do so. 

COUNTY:  PUTNAM 

We, the undersigned authorized representatives of the jurisdictions listed below, certify that:  

1. We have executed agreements for implementation of our service delivery strategy and the attached forms
provide an accurate depiction of our agreed upon strategy (O.C.G.A 36-70-21);

2. Our service delivery strategy promotes the delivery of local government services in the most efficient,
effective, and responsive manner (O.C.G.A. 36-70-24 (1));

3. Our service delivery strategy provides that water or sewer fees charged to customers located outside the
geographic boundaries of a service provider are reasonable and are not arbitrarily higher than the fees
charged to customers located within the geographic boundaries of the service provider (O.C.G.A. 36-70-24
(20); and

4. Our service delivery strategy ensures that the cost of any services the county government provides (including
those jointly funded by the county and one or more municipalities) primarily for the benefit of the
unincorporated area of the county are borne by the unincorporated area residents, individuals, and property
owners who receive such service (O.C.G.A. 36-70-24 (3)).

JURISDICTION TITLE NAME SIGNATURE DATE 

CITY OF EATONTON 

PUTNAM COUNTY 

Mayor 

Chairman 

Walter C. Rocker, Jr. 

Billy Webster

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY  

FORM 4:  Certifications 

85



86



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 87 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
13. Authorization for Staff to schedule a Public Hearing for Proposed Changes to the Putnam 

County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 2 (Administration) (BW) 

  

87



PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

EXPLANATION OF DOCUMENTS: 
 

Red language equals added text. 
Struck through language equals deleted text. 

 

Chapter 2 – ADMINISTRATION 

ARTICLE II. - BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
Sec. 2-33. - Voting majority. 

Passage of a motion shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of 

commissioners then in office. When a two-thirds majority is specified, a majority 
vote shall mean at least two-thirds of the commissioners present and voting.  In 

the event of a tie vote, the chairperson shall vote to break the tie. 
 
(Ord. of 4-5-2002, § 1.03; Amend. of 11-6-2009(1) ; Amend. of 2-1-2013 ) 

 
Sec. 2-34. - Abstentions. 

All A district commissioners shall vote on all motions unless he or she has a 
conflict of interest which would prevent him or her from making a decision in a fair 
and legal manner. If a conflict of interest does exist, the commissioner, including 

the chairperson, shall explain for the record his or her decision to abstain on any 
vote. 

 
(Ord. of 4-5-2002, § 1.04; Amend. of 11-6-2009(1) ; Amend. of 2-1-2013 ) 

Sec. 2-35. - Chairperson. 

The chairperson of the board of commissioners is responsible for the orderly 
conduct of the meeting. In order to fulfill this duty, the chairperson shall enforce 
the rules of procedure that are adopted by the board of commissioners. The 

chairperson shall be impartial and conduct the meetings in a fair manner. The 
chairperson may not introduce motions but may second motions and shall vote if, 

and only if, exactly two affirmative votes have been cast by district 
commissioners. 

(Ord. of 4-5-2002, § 1.05; Amend. of 11-6-2009(1); Amend. of 2-1-2013) 

Sec. 2-36.3. - County departments. 
It is hereby established for Putnam County Government, the following 

departments: 
 

(a) Animal control.  
(b) County clerk's office.  
(c) Finance.  

(d) Public safety (ambulance, fire, rescue).  
(e) Uncle Remus golf course.  

(f) Oconee Springs Park.  
(g) Planning and development.  

88



PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

(h) Public buildings.  
(i) Public works.  

(j) Recreation.  
(k) Senior citizens center.  

(l) Transit. 
 
(Ord. of 5-19-2009(2)) 

 
Sec. 2-40. - Order of business. 

All regular board meetings shall substantially follow an established order of 
business. The order shall be as follows: 
(1) Call to order; 

(2) Invocation; 
(3) Pledge of allegiance; 

(4) Special presentations; 
(5) Public hearing, if necessary 
(5 6) Public comments; 

(6 7) Approval of agenda; 
(7 8) Consent agenda; 

(8 9) Other agenda items; 
(10) County manager report; 

(11) County attorney report; 
(12) Commissioner announcements; 
(9 13) Closed session, if necessary 

(13 14) Adjournment. 
 

(Ord. of 4-5-2002, § 1.10; Amend. of 3-5-2010; Amend. of 6-19-2012) 
 
Sec. 2-53. - Appointment procedures. 

Appointments to all boards, authorities, and commissions shall be conducted 
in accordance with the procedures contained in this section. 

 
(a) The county clerk shall cause to be published in the county's legal organ an 
advertisement announcing any vacancies at least 14 days prior to any appointment.  

 
(b) Following the appropriate advertising period, the county clerk, or designee, shall 

prepare and provide to the commission, a spreadsheet format list of all qualified 
candidates whose applications were received timely by the county clerk.  
 

(c) Immediately after the agenda item has been called, the clerk will verbally 
announce the qualified candidates and present their resume. A visually projected 

image of the spreadsheet prepared in subsection (b) above may be substituted.  
 
(d) For each vacant position, except as outlined in chapter 14-4(b) and 66-150(b), 

each commissioner may nominate anyone on the qualified list. Each nomination 
must receive a second to be considered for a later vote. While it is desirable to have 

each district represented on all county boards, authorities, and commissions as well 
as to have as much representation across the entire county and its constituents as 

89



PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

possible, the greater need is to have interested, qualified, and responsible 
applicants who will provide the greatest contribution to Putnam County in carrying 

out the necessary functions of these boards, authorities, and commissions. All 
candidates who have received a nomination and a second can be discussed by the 

commissioners. Following discussion, a roll call vote will be taken. The proper 
response, to the call for a vote, is the name of the preferred candidate. The person 
receiving the majority vote of the commissioners will be the candidate selected. In 

those cases where there is not a tie and no one has received a majority vote, a 
second round of voting may be directed by the chairman.  

 
(e) No member of any board, authority, or commission shall be an employee of 
Putnam County as defined in Section I.D. of the Putnam County Personnel Manual.  

For the purposes of this subsection, a county commissioner is not considered an 
employee of Putnam County. 

 
(Amend. of 9-15-2009; Amend. of 11-6-2009(1); Amend. of 11-30-2009(1); 
Amend. of 10-18-2011(1); Amend. of 3-1-2013) 

90



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 91 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
14. Chairman Appointments (BW) 

a. BOC Vice Chairman 
b. Middle Georgia Regional Commission Council 
c. Hospital Authority Liaison 

  

91



Sec. 2-36. - Vice-chairperson. 
 
The chairperson shall select a vice-chairperson from the board 
members at the beginning of each calendar year. The vice-
chairperson shall fulfill the duties of the chairperson if the 
chairperson is not in attendance and shall vote on all matters in 
order to represent his or her district. 
 
If the chairperson and the vice chairperson are absent and a 
quorum is present the remaining commissioners shall select a 

commissioner to serve as temporary chairperson of the meeting 
until either the chairperson or vice-chairperson is present at the 
meeting. 
 
(Ord. of 4-5-2002, § 1.06; Amend. of 11-6-2009(1)) 

92



93



94



95



96



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 97 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
15. Appointment of County Clerk (BW) 

  

97



98



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 99 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
16. Appointment of General Counsel (BW) 

  

99



From: Barry Fleming <bfleming@flemingnelson.com>  
Sent: Saturday, September 22, 2018 9:25 AM 
To: Paul Van Haute <pvanhaute@putnamcountyga.us> 
Subject: Putnam County, Georgia - August 2018 Invoices - Files 1, 5, 6, 7, 10, 15, & 16 

 
 
 

In the more than five years we have represented the County our hourly rate has remained 

static.  Unfortunately, but we think understandably, in those five years our overhead and 

staffing expenses have increased. Accordingly, this has necessitated an increase in our hourly 

rates to $165 beginning the 4th quarter of this year. We appreciate the positive comments from 

Commissioners that they would be amendable at a later date to an increase during and after 

the discussion of going to $175 about a year ago, but they wanted to wait until the TSPLOST 

was integrated into the budget and other financial matters became more clear. We recognize 

this is not as high as an increase as earlier proposed a year ago by the Chairman, but we fell it 

will suffice for our needs. We appreciate your allowing us to serve the County and we value 

Putnam as our client. We are happy to discuss this with you if need be.   
 

Let me know if you have any questions. 

 

Thanks, 

Barry 

 

Barry A. Fleming 

Fleming & Nelson LLP 

Post Office Box 2208 

Evans, Georgia 30809 

(706) 434-8770 x 201 

Fax: (706) 664-0410 
 
 
 

100



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 101 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
17. Appointment of Auditor (BW) 

  

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 110 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
18. Appointment to the Sinclair Water Authority (BW) 

  

110



111



112



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 113 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
19. Appointments to the Planning & Zoning Commission (staff-CC) 

  

113



114



Applicants for Planning and Zoning Commission                                                                1/8/2019

NAME ADDRESS DISTRICT

CURRENT 

OCCUPATION OTHER

APPLICATION 

DATE

Tim Pierson 103 Cody Circle 3

Financial 

Advisor

Completed ChFC, 

Accredited 

Investment 

Fiduciary, CLU 

designation, 

Leadership Putnam 

graudate 12/18/2018

Fred Ward 466 Rabbit Skip Road 1 Retired

Technical school, 4 

years BOC, 2 years 

on P&Z 12/30/2018

Alan M. Oberdeck 792 S. Steel Bridge Rd 3 Retired/Author

Milwauke School of 

Engineering, 

Carthage College, 6 

years on P&Z 1/4/2019

James P. Marshall, 

Jr. 104 Church Street 2

Retired Land 

Use Planner

UGA, 3 years with 

DCA, several terms 

on P&Z 1/4/2019

Joel Eric Hardie 345 Twin Bridges Road 4

Supervisor for 

Mining 

Company

High School, 

currently serving on 

P&Z 1/4/2019

Martha Farley 2 pending

Page 1 of 1

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



2 year term                                                             Last Updated 1/8/2019 

Appointed by BOC (one from each district and at-large chair) 

(See Chapter 66, Section 66-150 of the “Putnam County Code of Ordinances”) 

Need to provide information to HR 

       

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 

 

MEMBER                                                      TERM EXPIRES   

    

Frederick Ward (District One)                 12/31/2018   

466 Rabbit Skip Road SW       

Eatonton, GA  31024 

(706) 485-3411 (home) 

 

Tommy Brundage (District Two)      12/31/2018 

145 Dickey Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

(706) 485-7461 (home) 

 

Alan M. Oberdeck (District Three)      12/31/2018   

792 S. Steel Bridge Road       

Eatonton, GA  31024 

(706) 923-1724 (home) 

 

Joel Eric Hardie* (District Four)      12/31/2018   

345 Twin Bridges Road                     

Eatonton, GA 31024 

 (478) 946-3664 (office) 

(478) 233-4808 (office-cell) 

 

James P. Marshall, Jr., Chairman          12/31/2018  

104 Church Street        

Eatonton, GA  31024-3249 

(706) 485-6442 (home) 

 

*filling the unexpired term of John Langley 
 

 

 

123



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 124 of 137 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
20. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 

  

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



5 year terms           

5 members (local development) Appointed by BOC                   

Copy to Economic Development Director                                                                                          Last Updated 1/8/2019 

 

PUTNAM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

MEMBER                                     TERM EXPIRES 

 

Joshua Daniel, Secretary/Treasurer                 05/01/2021 

107 Camak Place 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

877-786-9225 (work) 

joshua@towabletailgates.com 

 

Patty Burns*          05/01/2020 

120 Nina Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024   

706-485-3227 (home) 

478-746-9421 (work) 

patty@fickling.com 

 

Bill W. Sharp, Chairman        RESIGNED 12-10-18    05/01/2023 

103 Bulloch Hall Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-484-1386 (home) 

 

Eugene Smith          06/01/2022 

108 Bear Creek Road 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Ed Waggoner, Vice-Chairman      05/01/2023 

130 Iron Horse Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

 

 

*Filling the unexpired term of Lynward Lindsey 

 
 

137


	Top
	1. 20190111 BOC Welcome
	2. 20190111 BOC Invocation
	3. 20190111 BOC Pledge
	4. 20190111 BOC Special Presentations
	5. 20190111 BOC Public Comments
	6. 20190111 BOC Agenda Approval
	7. 20190111 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 12-07-18 BOC Minutes.pdf
	2019 Alcohol Licenses.doc

	8. 20190111 BOC Tax Comm Bad Debts
	Tax Commissioner Write Off List-rotated.pdf

	9. 20190111 BOC Magistrate Court Judges
	Magistrate Request Letter.pdf

	10. 20190111 BOC Interfor Tax Abatement Schedule
	Interfor tax abatement approval - agenda item request form 1-11-19-2.pdf
	PROJECT PHILLY - $87 million STANDARD Tax Abatement Schedule  12-18-18.pdf
	PROJECT PHILLY - $87 million ACCELERATED Tax Abatement Schedule  12-18-18.pdf
	PROJECT PHILLY - $87 million CONSOLIDATED Tax Abatement Schedule 12-18-18.pdf

	11. 20190111 BOC Recreation Lighting Project
	Musco Sports Lighting - Phase 2 Football-Soccer Field LED Lights.pdf
	18-61221-001 Bid Tab Sheet completed (Recreation Lights)-edited.pdf

	12. 20190111 BOC SDS
	SDS Resolution.pdf
	All SDS Forms Combined-updated 1.3.19.pdf
	SDS Form 4 signed by Mayor.pdf

	13. 20190111 BOC Code Changes
	Chapter 2 Administration.pdf

	14. 20190111 BOC Chairman Appts
	Vice Chairman.pdf
	MGRC Council Letter-edited.pdf
	2019 RC Council Form signed.pdf

	15. 20190111 BOC County Clerk
	Reappointment request letter CC 010419-2.pdf

	16. 20190111 BOC County Attorney
	Attorney Rate Letter.pdf

	17. 20190111 BOC Auditor
	2018-03-02 3M Audit Services.pdf

	18. 20190111 BOC SWA Appointment
	2019-01-02 Letter Notification for SWA.pdf
	SWA Local Legislation.pdf

	19. 20190111 BOC P&amp;Z Appts
	P&amp;Z Commissioner Agenda Item2.pdf
	P&amp;Z Info2.pdf

	20. 20190111 BOC PDA Appt
	PDA Agenda Item2.pdf
	PDA Info-merged-edited.pdf

	21. 20190111 BOC CM Report
	22. 20190111 BOC CA Report
	23. 20190111 BOC Comm Announcements
	24. 20190111 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

